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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The 01d Mi11 lies on the east bank of the Little Pigeon River in Pigeon Forge.
The entire river is dammed above the mill in order for water to be conducted
over the large 24 foot breast wheel. The structure was completed in 1830; at
that time two ton French Buhrs were installed for grinding. Besides the breast
wheel there are also smaller tub wheels within the expansive structure.

The mill which is still used today on occasion for making various meals originally
had a number of uses. An iron forge was set up at the mill--it was the origin

of the town name. Only a few remnabts of the forge remain underneaththe mill.

One hammer lies close by at a local restaurant. Lumber was also sawed at the
mill. On the second floor looms were kept and cloth was made during the Civil

War period. The variety of use explainsthe shape and expansiveness of the
building.

The section of the mill above the breast wheel is three stories high. Gear
mechanisms and grinding stones are contained therein. The elongated section
was once used as part of the sawing operation. Presently it contains crafts,
meal and mountain "nick nacks". The mill is supported by 14" x 14" yellow
poplar logs which are forty feet long and rest on pillars or large river rocks
(now reinforced with concrete). The interior is hand-hewn hemlock and oak

held together by hickory pegs. The floors are of heart pine laid down by
rectangular nails. The exterior of all sections of the mill has been
weatherboarded with yellow poplar. There is a one-story porch across the front
of the building.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Pigeon Forge is located in a narrow valley in the heart of Sevier County. The
area was one of the first to be settled in the county (1790's); its rolling
farmland 1ies in sharp contrast to the surrounding foothills and mountains. Its
unusual name is derived from the Passenger Pigeons (now extinct) which flocked

to the valley in migrating (thus the "Pigeon River")

from the early iron works there.

and the "Forge" came

As early as 1820 Isaac Love began iron production operations in the area. He
mined the ore from hillside banks, transported it to the river and smelt the

ore at the rustic forge which occupied the same site as the 01d Mill. By

1836 Love and his three sons, William K. Love, James L. Love and Preston A. Love,

had obtained about 7000 acres for the small industry.

Land was 6ften secured

tax free because the Tennessee legislature permitted this measure of land

"unfit for cultivation" for the establishment of iron works.

The quality and

quantity of the ore was not sufficient to sustain the Love business. By 1838
full time operation of the forge ceased; occasional operations continued until

the 1860's.

The mill was constructed in 1830. The local farmers produced wheat, oats and

corn which they brought to the mill for grinding.

In later times wheat and oats

were less frequently grown because of the competition of the Midwest. During

the Civil War looms were set up at the mill for cloth production for the military.
In 1885 the forge below the mill was dismantled and sent to Kentucky. Saw mill
operations began about this time. The saws were removed and storage room for .
grain was set up. A generator was installed at the mill in the early 20th century
and continued to supply the area with electricity until 1930.

The Pigeon Forge mill has made a significant contribution to the industrial life
of the community for over a century. It has been adapted for a variety of uses,
inctuding the operation of an iron forge, grist mill, looms, sawmill, and power

generator.

Long a landmark in the area, the Pigeon Forge Mill is one of the most popular
attractions to the thousands of tourists visiting the Smoky Mountains National

Park.
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